
UNITED NATIO~S 

ECONOMIC AND 
SOCIAL COUNCIL 
OFFICIAL· RECORDS 

Fourteenth Session, 597th 
MEETING 

Tuesday, 10 June 1952, at 10.30 a.m. 

NEW YORK 

CONTENTS 
Page 

World economic situation (continued) : (b) Report of the Economic Com-
mission for Asia and the Far East (E/Zl71, E/L.306) ............... 203 

President: Mr. S. Amjad ALI (Pakistan). 

Present: The representatives of the following coun
tries: 
Argentina, Belgium, Canada, China, Cuba, Czechoslo
vakia, Egypt, France, Iran, Mexico, Pakistan, Philip
pines, Poland, Sweden, Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics, United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern 
Ireland, United States of America, Uruguay. 

Observers from the following countries : 
Chile, Yugoslavia. 

The representatives of the following special
ized agencies : 
International Labour Organisation, Food and Agricul
ture Organization of the United Nations, United 
Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organiza
tion, World H~alth Organization. 

World economic situation (continued) : (b) Re· 
port of the Economic Commission for Asia and 
the Far East (E/2171, E/L.306) 

[Agenda item 3 (b)] 

1. Mr. LOKANATHAN (Executive Secretary of 
the Economic Commission for Asia and the Far East) 
stated that the most significant development in the 
countries within the purview of the Economic Com
mission for Asia and the Far East ( ECAFE) during 
the previous eighteen months had been the violent 
fluctuations in the prices of their exports, on which 
their prosperity depended. In some cases, prices had 
risen more than 100 per cent and fallen just as vio
lently. As a result, the foreign exchange earnings of 
the ECAFE countries in the first and second halves 
of 1951 had varied by as much as $US900 million. 
Their balance of trade had changed from a positive 
h
1
at
5
ance of $US1,190 million during the first half of 

9 1 to a negative balance of $US410 million during 
the second half. Such fluctuations constituted an ex
tremely serious problem, which might be solved if the 
countries consuming the raw materials exported by the 
countries in the ECAFE area were to establish a fair 
ahnd stable price level, if possible slightly in favour of 
t e producing countries. 

203 

2. The foreign exchange earnings of the ECAFE 
countries might have been used for economic develop .. 
ment. In practice it had not been possible to do so, 
partly because of the temporary and sudden nature of 
the fluctuations, partly because of the difficulties of the 
supply situation and partly because the ECAFE coun .. 
tries had had no sufficiently detailed development plans 
to enable them to take advantage of their fortunate 
trade position during the upward price movement. As 
a result they had failed to increase their imports of 
capital goods significantly, and in the main, the increase 
had been concentrated on consumer goods. In order to 
combat inflation, it had not been an altogether bad 
policy to increase imports of consumer goods. But the 
ECAFE countries were still badly in need of capital 
goods. 
3. A number of resolutions adopted by ECAFE a~ its 
eighth session (E/2171, part IV) dealt with supplies 
of development goods, while the resolution of the fourth 
session of the Sub-Committee on Iron and Steel, ap
proved by the Commission at its eighth session, ex
pressed disappointment at uthe extreme difficulty which 
countries of the region have • . . lately experienced i~ 
seeking to purchase pig-iron and semi-finished steel 
outside the region and their difficulty also in purchasing 
their requirements of finished steel and the resulting 
extreme hardship to the industries and economic de
velopment projects of Asia and the Far East dependent 
upon steel". 
4. The Economic Commission for Asia and the Far 
East had enjoxed the co-operation of the Economic 
Commission for Europe in its efforts to increase the 
supply o£ capital goods. A list of the requirements of the 
ECAFE countries had been sent to ECE and the latter 
had supplied information on the availability of capital 
goods in Europe. 
5. The first regional Conference on Trade Promo
tion, held at Singapore, had been very successful and 
had been attended not only by member States but also 
by observers from States not members of the Commis
sion. A second such conference would meet in the 
Philippines in March 1953. Its agenda could be broad
ened to include the points raised in the General As-

E/SR.597 



204 Economic and Social Council-Fourteenth Session 

sembly resolution ( 523 (VI)) on integrated economic 
development and commercial agreements, and it might 
take up the question of expediting the flow of capital 
goods to the ECAFE countries from the industrialized 
countries in exchange for raw materials. · 
6. The most serious problem confronting the countries 
of Asia and the Far East was still that of food. 
While there had been a 10 per cent increase in the 
population of the area in the preceding decade, the 
food supply was not greater than before the Second 
World War. The Commission had been concerned· with 
food and agriculture problems and the Executive Sec
retary had recently signed an agreement with the 
Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Na
tions on the establishment of a joint agricultural unit 
in ECAFE. 

7. The Economic Commission for Asia and the Far 
East accorded high priority to long-term development 
problems in its work programme, covering subjects 
such as multiple-purpose river basin development, 
flood control methods, hydraulic research stations, in
dustrial development planning, electric power, iron and 
steel, mineral resources, railways operation and track 
maintenance, road transport, the improvement of river 
and canal transports, land reform and research into 
the effects of industrialization on population growth. 
8. There was a general feeling in ·Asia and the Far 
East that the level of investment should be raised. 
Unfortunately the attempts by governments to increase 
domestic savings had not been successful ; the inflow 
of foreign capital in the post-war years had been 
limited. The work programme of ECAFE had included 
an analysis of the financial aspects of economic· de
velopment and the mobilization of domestic capital. 
The matter was urgent and any assistance in increasing 
the amount of investment would be helpful in further
ing economic development. 
9. He then referred to the Commission's decision, at 
its eighth session, to recommend to the Council that 
the terms of reference of the Commission should be 
amended so that Japan could be brought· within the 
scope of ECAFE and admitted as an associate member 
in the event of the adoption of that resolution by the 
Council. In view of the special geographic, historical 
and economic position of Japan in Asia, he felt that the 
participation of Japan would be of great value to the 
work of the Commission and that the economic rela
tions between Japan· and the rest of Asia would expand 
as a re~ult of the greater co-operation which the par
ticipation of Japan was likely to encourage. In conclu
sion, he stated that the Commission derived great en
couragement from the Coundl's support of its work 
programme and activities and hoped that that support 
would continue in the future. 

10. Mr. GARCIA (Philippines) remarked that there 
usually was a large measure of agreement in the Coun
cil and the General Assembly on the annual reports of 
the regional economic commissions, which had proved 
their worth and which should, in his opinion, fie con
tinued indefinitely. 

11 .. When ECAFE had first been established, most 
of its member countries had barely achieved their in
dependence. Economically, much of the region had been 
in a state of under-development. Low per capita in-

comes and insufficient productivity had been J?ressing 
problems. Poverty and a low standard of livmg had 
been traditional. The misery, hunger, ignorance and 

. sub-human level of existence had · been unparalleled 
elsewhere in the world. As the late Premier Liaquat 
Ali Khan of Pakistan had observed, the area had oeen 
constantly threatened with famine. It. was .re111arkable 
that, in spite of the difficulties originally confronting 
it, ECAFE had shown great resilience and had proved. 
that difficult circumstances could provide the inspira
tion for achievement. 
12. The work of ECAFE, though modest, had been 
a good start towards raising the living standards of the 
people of the East; it had worked effectively and with· 
out ostentation. The countries within its purview were 
beginning to acquire a regional consciousness in their 
approach to common economic problems. 
13. The secretariat of ECAFE had divided its work 
programme into. six broad categories : flood control, 
industrial development, inland transport, research and 

. statistics, technical assistance, and trade and finance. 
As indicated in the Commission's report (E/2171), 
remarkable progress had been achieved in all those 
fields. With regard to flood control, ECAFE had noted 
that greater attention was being paid to the broader 
aspects of the development of water resources and had 
approved the establishment of a training centre. It had 
also approved the work undertaken on inland trans
port and the convening of a regional conference on 
mineral resources. A regional conference to consider 
standard practices for the assessment of national rev· 
enue had been authorized. The efforts of the Secre
tariat in compiling statistics had been commended as 
an important contribution to Asiari economic develop· 
ment. The value of the annual economic surveys and 
quarterly economic bulletins had been appreciated. It 
had been agreed to begin future sessions with a discus· 
sion of the regional economic situation based OJ:! the 
surveys and the half-yearly reviews in the bulletins. 
Such discussion would be a valuable complement to the 
Council's consideration of the world economic situa· 
tion. 
14. The report of ECAFE on technical assistance ac .. 
tivities was very encouraging. The appointment of 
resident representatives in four ECAFE countries, in· 
eluding the Philippines, and the nomination of a re· 
gional representative of the Technical Assistance 
Administration augured well for the future of the Tech· 
nical Assistance Programme in the ECAFE area. The 
increase in the number of fellows, scholars and experts 
showed that the economic needs of the area were ap· 
predated. Perhaps the most interesting aspect of the 
report, as far as technical assistance was concerned, 
was that it indicated a growing consciousness of the 
desirability of the regional approach ; ECAFE had, for 
example, advocated the establishment of regional train· 
ing centres. 
15. The increasing interest of ECAFE in trade be· 
tween the countries of Asia and Europe was illustrated 
by the joint ECAFE-ECE-FAO project. 
16. According. to representatives of industrially ~~ 
veloped countries, there was no shortage of captt 
goods. On the other hand, the representatives of under .. 
developed countries, including the Philippines, had 
maintained that there had been and still was a shortage 



597th Meeting-10 June 1952 205 

in the supply of capital equipment. In the report on 
the World Economic Situa.tion1 1950~19511 the Secre .. 
taryMGeneral took the intermediary view that, while more 
capital goods had been produced in 1951, there had 
been instances of ~ lengtli~ning of de!ivery p~riods and 
a decline in the tmportatlon of cap1tal eqmpment. by 
some under~developed countries. A.s indicated in the 
report (E/2171, part. !V), ECAFE had. adopted th!e~ 
resolutions dealing w1th the genera,l subJects of cap~ta~ 
goods and the steel shorta~e. Part B of the resolutiOn 
of 6 February 1952 (E;CN.ll/343) expressed the 
deep concern of ECAFE at the adverse effects on eco .. 
nomic development of possible serious delays in the 
delivery of el~ctric power plant and generating equip .. 
ment and machinery and equipment for the iron and 
steel industry. In part,D, the Commission recommended 
that the supplying countries should give special con
sideration to the needs for capital goods and materials 
of countries of the ECAFE region. 
17. With regard to the observation that capital equip .. 
ment was not available because the under .. developed 
countries did not have properly prepared development 
rrojects, he drew the Council's attention to the reso
lution on the supply of electric power and iron and 
steel equipment. The resolution on capital goods was 
a further indication that the ECAFE countries were 
fully aware of the need to prepare development projects. 
18. The Commission was conscious of the need to 
expand and diversify its exports in order to obtain fair 
prices and to reduce price; fluctuations and had recom
mended the holding of a regional conference on trade 
promotion in 1953. The conference was to be held in 
the Philippines at the same time as an international 
trade exhibition and would therefore be a meeting place 
both for representatives of primary producing and in .. 
dustrialized countries and for businessmen. 
19. Witn regard to the Commission's resolution of 
29 January 1952 (E/CN.ll/335) contained in the re
port (E/2171, part IV), he recalled that the· Philip .. 
pines had signea the Treaty of Peace with Japan at 
San Francisco but had not yet ratified it. For that 
reason, and in the absence of instructions from Manila, 
he would vote for the inclusion of Japan in the geo
graphical sphere of ECAFE, but would abstain on the 
paragraph recommending the admission of Japan as 
an associate member of ECAFE. . 
20. The invitation extended by the Philippines to 
ECAFE to establish its headquarters at Manila was 
based on his Government's faith in the organization and 
on its desire to encourage co~operation among the 
countries of Asia and the Far East. Such co"operation 
might be further advanced by transferring tl:ie head .. 
quarters of ECAFE perhaps every four years. While 
every country in the ECAFE area could provide a 
suitable site for its headquarters, Manila had the ad
vantage of being centrally situated at the eastern ap
proaches to Asia. 
21. Mr. HUSAIN (Pakistan) congratulated Mr. 
Lokanathan on the report of ECAFE, which showed 
how manifold and complex the Commission's activities 
were. 
22. He was glad to note that collaboration between 
ECAFE and the specialized agencies, in particular - .... 

1
United Nations Publications, Sales No.: 195l.II.C.4. 

FAO had b~en on a continuing basis. A significant 
devel~pment . was the establishment of . the poi~t 
ECAFE-FAO agricultural unit for promotmg teChm:. 
cal agricultural development. . 
23. The people of Asia and the Far East were never 
far from starvation. The region was subject to devas
tating floods. The work of the Bureau of Fl~od Con
trol, which had produced some e:ccellent techntcal pub
licatiOils was therefore to be htghly commended. He 
also not~d that emphasis would be given in the work 
of the Bureau to the possibility of multi-purpos.e uni
fied river basin development. An important proJect of 
that type had been begun in eastern Pakistan. 
24. The Commission was vigorously pursuing its work 
in the field of economic development, and was to set 

· up a regional centre for training in the formulation 
and appraisal of industrial development programmes. 
The proposed centre would be complementary to a 
similar centre for agricultural development projects, 
which had been set up two years previously at Lahore. 
It was however to be hoped that the new centre would 
be continued for a number of years. 
25. His delegation was impressed by the high quality 
of the Commission's technical papers on economic de
velopment, in particular the studies it had produced. on 
the mobilization of domestic capital. It seemed, how
ever, that a number of the studies on economic develo~
ment planned by the Economic Commission for Asta 
and the Far East and the Economic Commission for 
Latin America were of a similar nature, and greater 
co-operation and integration of efforts between the two 
Commissions would be helpful. ~ 

26. One obstacle in the way of economic development 
had been the inade9uacy ~f power development and !he 
difficulty of obtaimng cap~tal goods. In that conn~tpn 
he fully agreed 'Yith th~ VIews e~pressed by the Phll!P
pine representative. Hts dele~bon attached gr~at sig
nificance to the recommendations of the Commtttee on 
Industry and Trade and the Iron and Steel Sub~Com
mittee. The Commission was seriously concerned at the 
delays wh!ch h~d occurr~d in supplying the count~ies 
of the regiOn w1th electric power plant and generatmg 
equipment, and had requested its secretariat to collect 
information regarding policies affecting the procure
ment of capital goods and other essential goods and to 
suggest remedies for overcoming the difficulties. The 
Council might decide to take further action in that 
field in connexion with its discussion of item 5 of the 
agenda. 
27. Inland water transport was one of the chief forms 
of transport in the ECAFE region, particularly in 
eastern Pakistan, and he therefore welcomed the sug .. 
gestion for the establishment of demonstration inland 
water transport projects. It was to be hoped that .at 
least one of them would be in eastern Pakistan. 
28. One of the most hopeful features of the ECAFE 
Conference on Trade Promotion, held at Singapore in 
1951, was that it had been attended by businessmen 
not only from the ECAFE region, but from other coun
tries which were anxious to promote trade with the 
ECAFE countries. 

29. His delegation was completely sati~fied with. the 
Commission's programme of work; the hst of proJects 
was a valuable reference document. 



206 Economic and Social Council-Fourteenth Session 

30. Draft resolution B recommended for adoption by 
the Council (E/2171, part IV) was in full conformity 
with the stand taken by the Pakistani delegation at the 
previous session of the Commission ~>n the question of 
admitting J a .pan as an associate member to ECAFE. 
Its participatiOn should be of great benefit to the Com
mission. 
31. Lord SELKIRK (United Kingdom) said that 
the useful functions performed by ECAFE justified the 
CounciPs decision to give it permanent status. 
32. Before the Second World War, the general pat
tern of trade and international relationships in the 
ECAFE area had been such that countries in the area 
had had closer contacts with countries outside it than 
with their immediate neighbours. The war had brought 
an end to those relationships, .but had provided no sub
stitute. The emergence of new self-governing countries 
in post-war Asia had brought a new consciousness of 
the unity of the area and the countries of the Far East 
were seeking to draw greater benefit from their rela
tions with one another. That process would, however, 
inevitably take time because they had first to tackle 
their immediate internal problems and also because, in 
a number of cases, their economies were parallel rather 
than complementary. The Commission had given valu
able assistance in the process, as was evidenced by its 
work in the co-ordination of transport and industrial 
development. 

33. The Commission had also helped to renew and 
strengthen traditional ties with the countries outside 
the area and had been particularly active in promoting 
trade. He noted, in that connexion, that the Executive 
Secretary had already written to the governments of 
supplying countries, as suggested in the last paragraph 
of resolution B (E/2171, part IV) ancl was also mak
ing studies ,,f requirements and of the availability of 
various types of manufactured goods in conjunction 
with ECE. Useful as such studies might prove, the 
Commis~ion should observe a clP.ar line of demarcation 
between collecting. information and becoming an inter
mediary between suppliers and purchasers. It would 
be completely outside the Commission's terms of ref
erence for it to become activ.ely eng~ged in trade nego
tiations. 

34. Similar considerations applied to the resolution of 
the Sub-Committee on Iron and Steel (E/2171, part 
IV). In the case of iron and steel and of industrial and 
manufactured goods, the fiVorld Economic Report, 
1950-1951, showed· that during the past year the indus
trialized countries had produced more than had been 
anticipated, and his Government was making every 
effort to increase the supplies of the capital equipment 
required by countries in the area. 
35. While his delegation would support draft resolu
tion A recommended for adoption by the Council 
(E/2171, part IV), it reserved the right to comment 
in greater detail in the Fifth Committee of the General 
Assembly on the financial implications of the prioritiel) 
established by the Executive Secretary. 

36. One of the brighter features of the post-war world 
was the fact that Japan was again in a position to con
tribute constructively to the peaceful Clevelopment of 
trade and other relationships in the Far East. His dele
gation would therefore support draft resolution B 

(l;,/2171, part IV), and the amendment to it proposed 
by the representative of Pakistan (E/L.356). 
37. Mr. SAKSIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub
lics) said his delegation would support the Pakistan 
draft resolution (E/L.306) moving the admission of 
Japan as an associate member of ECAFE. 
38. H'! v.:xpressed appreciation of the Executive Sec .. 
retary's statement on the activities of ECAFE. He 
wished, however, to ask the Executive Secretary to 
whfr.t extent the Commission's activities were affected 
by the fact that the legitimate representatives of the 
People's Republic of China had not so far participated 
in its work. He also asked what measures had been 
taken by the secretariat of the Commission to palliate 
the effects of the anomalous situation involving the 
absence from the Commission of the representatives of 
the largest country in Asia. 
39. Father DE BREUVERY (France) thought the 
Commission's report was most 1mportant because of 
the excellent account which it gave both of its past 
activities and achievements and of its proposed future 
activities. 
40. The Economic Commission for Asia an.d the F~r 
East had the choice of two methods in carrymg out 1ts 
programme: it mig~t either draw up a pr~li~inary 
inventory of the vartQUs problems and potentlahbes m 
the different countries and then give governm~nts the 
assistance they needed in developing their economies
which was the method qdopted by the Economic Com
mission for Latin America-or, without spending time 
on carrying out a general review, it mi~ht study. the 
various problems as they arose and establtsh substdtary 
bodies to deal with them effectively. The latter method 
had been chosen by ECAFE and the Commission wa~J 
to be congratulated on the choice, because experience 
had shown that it was better adapted to the countries 
of the region in view of the situation resulting from 
the ravages of the war and the new experiences which 
recently acquired political independence had involved. 
The numerous committees, sub-committees and work
ing parties thus established by ECAFE had been most 
productive and they had produced a whole series of 
very interesting studies: 
41. The first efforts of ECAFE had been directed 
towards the industrial reconstruction and development 
of the countries of the region, which had orjginally 
seemed particularly suitable for cons9lidating th~ir p_o· 
litical independen~e. Subsequently, wtthout shelvmg ~ts 
long-term industrial plans for the area, the secretarmt 
had realized that other no less urgent problems ar~se 
if the desired balance in the economy of those countrtes 
was to be .ensured. In that connexion he drew the 
Council's attention to three new undertakings by the 
secretariat which especially demonstrated its adapta· 
bility and practical approach. A Working Party on 
Cottage and Small-Scale Industries had held its first 
meetings in Apri11951; an initial Conference on Tra1e 
Promotion had met at Singapore in October 195 i 
lastly, a new unit dealing with agriculture h~d been 
established within the secretariat and its chtef, ~p
pointed by FAO, was also responsible to the,Execu~1ve 
'J~~retary o£ ECAFE. Those three undertakmg~ mtght 
be of great importance to the future of the regton and 
the French delegation therefore wished to make some 
observations which it considered to be important. 



597tb Meeting-10 June 1952 .... ____________ .2_0_7 
-----------------------------------------------------
42. So far the Commission had concentrated mainly 
on the additional products which cottage and small~ 
scale industries could contribute to the national exports. 
Discussions in the W o1'ldng Party and at the Commis~ 
sion's eighth session at Rartgoon had shown the im~ 
portance which should also be attached to the cottage 
and small~scale industries, the products of which were 
.intended for local consumption. In addition to increas~ 
in~ the income of the local population, those enter~ 
pr1ses were a factor in offsetting endemic rural under~ 
employment and in raising the standards of living of 
the people by making more varied products available 
to them. In addition, a systematic endeavour to improve 
and standardize progressively cottage industry methods 
would probably make it possible gradually to adapt the 
local labour force for the kind of work required in the 
larger industrial undertakings. 
43. The Singapore Conference on Trade Promotion 
had been remarkably successful and a similar regional 
conference was proposed for 1953. It would obviously 
be of great advantage to study, at the new conference, 
to what extent the countries fn the region would be 
able to meet the total requirements of the area and to 
what extent a more healthy diversification of their econ
omies might help to increase trade relations among the 
countries concerned. It might also be stressed that a 
sensible world pattern of the buying and selling rela~ 
tionships entered into by each individual country was 
just as fundamental to political independence as indus~ 
trial development. That was a way of distributing risk 
and the study of the possibilities of such distribution 
might be of great advantage to the countries of the 
area. 

44. The part which the new agricultural unit, in which 
there was complete co'-ordination between ECAFE and 
FAO, generally had to play could not be over-empha
sized. Even if the countries in the area became highly 
industrialized, that could not involve any mass displace
ment of the rural population to the towns, and the 
problem of improving the standard of living of that 
population would remain the same. That population 
should also. help to feed the new industrial cities, which 
in turn would be the biggest market for their consumer 
goods. In the matter of food production, he felt that 
the productivity of agriculture and fishing would be 
more easily increased by the improvement of existing 
methods and equipment, rather than by importing new 
methods and equipment not so well adapted to local 
conditions and customs. It was also essential to arouse 
in the peasants an interest in the communal welfare 
and a sense of responsibility. M ultiple~purpose co-oper
atives would not only offer economic advantages; they 
would also be of educaHonal value in developing the 
sense of responsibility of the rural population towards 
the community to which they belonged. Some very in~ 
teresting experiments in that connexion had been car~ 
ried out in Japan. · 

45. Mr. NYMAN (Sweden) expressed the Swedish 
delegation's appreciation of the work of· ECAFE. He 
believed that the ECAFE studies on the expansion of 
industrial development plans, electric power and min
eral resources should play a fundamental role in shap
ing the economic future of the area. It was satisfactory 
to note that the Commission had given considerable 
attention to the problem of wide fluctuations in the 

prices of primary products. That complex and highly 
significant question affected not only that area but the 
rest of the world. 
46. The Commission had the very important function 
of promotin~ economic and industrial developm~nt in 
an area wh1ch included many under-developed coun
tries. It should also develop plans for carrying out land 
reform with a view to increasing agricultural produc
tion. 
47. The Swedish delegation had been pleased to note 
the close co-operation established between ECAFE, the 
specialized agencies and other related international or
ganizations. 
48. It whole~1ieartedly supported the recommendation 
to admit Japan as an associate member of the Com
mission. 
49. Mr. ASHER (United States of America) said 
that ECAFE was rendering a unique service by helping 
the countries of the area to understand one another's 
difficulties and to co-operate in working out solutions. 
It was collecting and analysing economic data on the 
region ar,'d supplying useful te.chnical ad,~ice to gove;n·· 
ments, and the problems affectmg the x·eg10n were bemg 
brought to the attention of nations outside the area on 
an increasing scale. · 
50. The ECAFE publications, in particular the an-· 
nual surveys and the quarterly economic bull~etins, were 
extremely valuable, although occasionally exception 
might be taken to some of the views expressed on par
ticular issues. For example, the report on Unibed States 
shipments of development goods to. Asia and the Far 
East given in the ECAFE Bulletin for November 1951 
gave-quite unintentionally-an unfavourable impres
sion of the United States' record, which was unwar
ranted. The quality of the economic analyses contained 
in the surveys depended largely on the data available 
for the region and, as the statistics had ;mproved, the 
surveys had become correspondingly better. 
51. · It was understandable, but regrettable, that the 
Commission's 1951 survey had not yet appeared. It 
would be much better to publish the surveys earlier, 
even if that meant that they would not cover a calen
dar year. Publication in December, for example, would 
enable ECAFE to begin its annual sessions with an 
up-to-date review of the economic situation which could 
also be presented to the spring session of the Council. 
He understood that ECAFE was revising its publica
tion schedule and considering the possibility of includ
ing more analytical data in the reports. The Executive 
Secretary was to be commended for his efforts in that 
direction. 
52. All the governments of the countries of the 
ECAFE region realized the necessity of hastening their 
economic development and of reducing poverty, hunger 
and disease. vVhne many of them had been making 
vigorous efforts to deal with their probiems, most gov
ernments had been unable to secure the detailed' infor
mation on their economy necessary f.or the preparation 
of practical development plans. It was gratifying to 
note that the ECAFE secretariat was encouraging gov
ernments to collect basic data thtough regional statis
tical conferences and was offering them technical assist
ance in establishing and improving their statistical 
services. 



208 Economic and Social Council-Fourteenth Session 

53. The subsidiary organs of EC.AFE were function
ing well; the Bureau of Flood Control had undertaken 
important practical projects, while devoting increasing 
attention to the whole range of problems involved in 
the multiple-purpose development of water resources 
rather than confining itself to the narrow problem of 
flood control. Its work should receive new impetus 
from the CoundF s discussion on water control and 
utilizatior •. 
54. He noted that three sub-committees of the· Inland 
Transport Committee had been set up. Pursuant to 
paragraph 14 of the terms of reference of ECAFE 
(E/2171, appendix I), however, the Council must ap
prove the establishment of any such bodies. He assumed · 
that· the Council had approved that action, as no ob
jections had been voiced, and that no formal reference 
to the new transport sub-committees would therefore 
be required in the resolution taking note of the ECAFE 
report. . 
55. The Commission had quite properly devoted much 
attention to methods of expanding production and 
trade. It had sponsored a successful Trade Promotion 
Conference at Singapore and a significant meeting of 
its Working Party on the. Mobilization of Domestic 
Capital. The United States was pleased to note that 
F AO was co-operating with the secretariats of ECE 
and ECAFE in the study of the possibility of develop
ing trade between Asia and the Far East and Europe, 
and that ECAFE and FAO had collaborated in estab
lishing an agricultural unit. As much of the work of 
ECl.FE might. be called technical assistance, it was 
appropriate that increasingly close relations had been 
developed with the Technical Assistance Administra-

. tion. Twenty-one of the sixty-two projects in the Com
mission's current programme involved . co-operation 
with T AA. It wa;3 clear from the Commission's pro
gramme of work and priorities that it had observed the 
General Assembly (Assembly resolution 413 (V)) and 
Council (Council resolutions 362 B (XII) and 402 B 
III (XIII)) recommendations concerning the concen
tration of pfforts and resources. The number of priority 
projects had been reduced and co-operation with othe~ · 
agencies had been further improved. Although General 
.l\.ssembly resolution 533 C (VI) had been adopted too 
late for action by ECAFE, his delegation hoped that 
in future the Executive Secretary WPti1d be able to in
form the Council of the estimated cost of each project 
proposed by the Commission. 
56. In the light of the achievements· of ECAFE, the 
Council's Jecision (Council resolution 414 (XIII), 
para. 40) to extend its life indefinitely was wise. 
57. The United States was. prepared to support the 
admission of Japan as an associate member of ECAFE. 

58. Mr. HSIA (China) congratulated the Executive 
Secretary of ECAFE on the work of that organization. 

59. His delegation was gratified to note the progress 
made towards flood control, as it had taken the lead 
in advocating the establishment of a Bureau of Flood 
Control. Flood control and the utilization of water 
were two of the most vital problems confronting Asia 
and the Far East. · 

60. His delegation would support the Pakistani draft 
resolutio.n (E/L.306). 

61. Mr. PHARAONY (Egypt) said that his Gov
ernment would support the Pakistani draft resolution 
(E/L.3~6). 
62. Mr. LOKANATHAN (Executive Secretary of 
the Eccnomic Commission for Asia and the Far East), 
referring to the question raised by the USSR repre
sentative, drew attention to paragraph 133 of the re
port (E/2171) in which it was stated that the Com
mission had decided to adjourn the debate on the mo
tion on the representation of China submitted by the 
USSR representative because it would not be appro
priate for the Commission ·~o deal with a problem which 
was under consideration by the General Assembly. The 
Commi::sion had also rejected a USSR motion on the 
representation of China at its 1949 session. In such 
matters the Secretariat must act according to the Com
mission's instructions. 
63. With regard to publication schedules, he said that 
surveys covering a calendar year were usually pub
lished approximately six months lat-=:1' but even then 
complete data were not available in all instances. 
64. At the eig-hth session of ECAFE, various delega
tions had suggested that the schedule should be revised( 
as they felt that it would be more useful if the ECAFE 
surveys could be discussed at the Commission's ses
sions early in the year as well as in conjunction with 
the Council's debate on the world economic situation. 
For those reasons he had decided to revise the produc
tion schedule and he planned to issue the 1952 survey 
in December 1952. 
65. Turning to the United Kingdom representative's 

· comments, he said that the Commission had decided 
that neither ECAFE itself nor its secretariat should 
engage directly in trade negotiations . 
66. Mr. FARUKHI (Pakistan) wan.ted to emphasize 
the important role of Japan's industrial potential in the 
economic development of Asia, and the Far East, as 

1 well as the benefits which Japan would derive from 
trade with the other countries of the region. The con
sultative relationship granted J ~pan at the fifth session 
of the Council (Council resolution 69 (V)) should be 
extended to make it an associate member of ECAFE 
because that would develop a spirit of participation and 
responsibility and improve the Commission's work. 
67. It was with those considerations in mind that his 
delegation in ECAFE had moved that Japan should be 
admitted as an associate member. It had. expected the 
Council to act on the question when it resumed its 
thirteenth session and it was for that reason that the 
Pakistani representative had submitted to the Council 
at ,its thirteenth session a draft resolution on the terms 
of reference of ECAFE (E/L.306).2 

68. Ee wished to withdraw that draft resolution in 
favoU1' of the text adopted by ECAFE at its eighth 
sessio11 (E/2171, part IV, draft resolution B). 
69. He proposed however that the words ((Resolves 
to amend" in the operative part of draft resolution B 
should be replaced by the word ((Amends" (E/L.356). 
70. Since ECAFE was setting up working parties 
and other bodies in which Japan might be glad to par· 
ticipate, he urged the Council to accept his amendment 
to the draft resolution which would enable the Com-

2 See Official Records of the Economic ancl Social Council~ 
Resumed Thirteenth Session, 56Sth meeting. 



597th Meeting-10 June 1952 209 

mission to invite J a.panese representatives to participate 
in its work forthwith. 
71. The PRESIDENT put to the vote draft resolu
tion A (E/2171, part IV). 

Draft resolution A. 'llJaS adopted by 17 votes to none. 

72. The PRESIDENT put to the vote th~ Pakistani 
amendment to draft resolution B (E/L.356). 
· The Pakistani amendment was adopted by 17 votes 
to twne, with 1 abstention. . 
73. In accordance with the request of Mr. GARCIA 
(Philippines), the PRESIDENT put draft resolution 
B to the vote paragraph by paragraph. 

:Pri t d • u n e m .S.A. 

Sub-paragraph (i) was adopted unanimously. 
Sub-paragraph ( ii) of the preamble was adopted· by 

17 votes to none, with 1 abstention. 
Sub-paragraph ( i) of the operative part was adopted 

unanimously. 
Sub-paragraph ( ii) of thg operative part was adopted 

by 17 votes to none, with 1 abste.ntion. · . 
Draft resolution B as a whole, as amended, was 

adopted by 17 votes to none, wifh 1 abstention. 

The meeting rose at 12.50 p.m. 

71722-July 1952-2,850 




